
 
 

 
 

TRAFFIC AND ROAD SAFETY 
ADVISORY PANEL  

 
TUESDAY 21 JUNE 2005 

7.30 PM  
 

PANEL AGENDA (ADVISORY) 
 

COMMITTEE ROOMS 1&2                     
HARROW CIVIC CENTRE 

 
 

 
  MEMBERSHIP    (Quorum 3)  
 
    
 
  Chair: 

 
Councillor Miles 

 
Councillors: 

 
Burchell 
Choudhury 
Ismail 
Anne Whitehead 
 

Arnold 
Harriss 
Kara 
John Nickolay 
 

Branch 
 

 
 

  Advisers: Mrs R Carratt 
Mr E Diamond 
 

Mr A Wood 
 

 

    
 

 
Reserve Members: 

 
1. Ray 
2. Bluston 
3. Currie 
4. Kinsey 
5. Blann 
 

1. Mrs Bath 
2. Anjana Patel 
3. Osborn 
4. Seymour 
 

1. Thornton 
2. Miss Lyne 
 

 
 

 
Issued by the Democratic Services Section, 

Legal Services Department  
 
Contact:  Laura Kell, Committee Administrator 
Tel:  020 8424 1265    E-mail:  laura.kell@harrow.gov.uk  

NOTE FOR THOSE ATTENDING THE MEETING: 
IF YOU WISH TO DISPOSE OF THIS AGENDA, PLEASE LEAVE IT BEHIND AFTER THE MEETING. 

 IT WILL BE COLLECTED FOR RECYCLING. 



 

 

 
  HARROW COUNCIL 

 
TRAFFIC AND ROAD SAFETY ADVISORY PANEL  
 
TUESDAY 21 JUNE 2005 
 

 
 

  AGENDA - PART I   
 

1. Appointment of Chair:    
 To note the appointment of Councillor Miles as the Chair of the Traffic and 

Road Safety Advisory Panel for the remainder of the 2005/2006 Municipal 
Year, as agreed at the Cabinet Meeting of 19 May 2005. 
 

2. Attendance by Reserve Members:    
 To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve 

Members. 
 
Reserve Members may attend meetings:- 
 
(i) to take the place of an ordinary Member for whom they are a reserve; 
(ii) where the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the 

meeting; and  
(iii) after notifying the Chair at the start of the meeting. 
 

3. Declarations of Interest:    
 To receive declarations of personal or prejudicial interests, arising from 

business to be transacted at this meeting, from all Members present. 
 

4. Appointment of Vice-Chair:    
 To consider the appointment of a Vice-Chair to the Panel for the Municipal 

Year 2005/2006. 
 
(Note:  The Labour Group has nominated Councillor Anne Whitehead as 
Vice-Chair).   
 

5. Arrangement of Agenda:    
 To consider whether any of the items listed on the agenda should be 

considered with the press and public excluded on the grounds that it is 
thought likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted, that 
there would be disclosure of confidential information in breach of an 
obligation of confidence or of exempt information as defined in the Local 
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985. 
 

6. Minutes:  (Pages 1 - 6) Enc. 
 That the minutes of the meeting held on 2 March 2005, having been 

circulated, be taken as read and signed as a correct record. 
 

7. Public Questions:    
 To receive questions (if any) from local residents or organisations under the 

provisions of Advisory Panel and Consultative Forum Procedure Rule 15 
(Part 4E of the Constitution). 
 



 

 

8. Petitions:    
 To receive petitions (if any) submitted by members of the public/Councillors 

under the provisions of Advisory Panel and Consultative Forum Procedure 
Rule 13 (Part 4E of the Constitution). 
 

9. Deputations:    
 To receive deputations (if any) under the provisions of Advisory Panel and 

Consultative Forum Procedure Rule 14 (Part 4E of the Constitution). 
 

10. Appointment of Advisers to the Panel 2005/2006:  (Pages 7 - 10) Enc. 
 Report of the Director of Legal Services. 

 
 11. References from other Committees/Panels:   

 
Enc.  (a) Petition Requesting Road Saftey Measures in Kenton Park Parade, 

Kenton Road:    (Pages 11 - 16)   
   Reference from the Council meeting held on 24 February 2005.  

 
Enc.  (b) Petition Requesting Dangerous Traffic Problems to be Addressed in 

Albury Drive and Evelyn Drive:    (Pages 17 - 28)   
   Reference from the Council Meeting held on 24 February 2005. 

 
Enc.  (c) Petition Relating to Issues of Damage and Road Safety on Rayners 

Lane and Neighbouring Streets.:    (Pages 29 - 38)   
   Reference from the Council Meeting held on 21 April 2005. 

 
Enc.  (d) Petition Recommending Traffic Options for Georgian Way, Harrow-on-

the-Hill.:    (Pages 39 - 54)   
   Reference from the Council Meeting held on 21 April 2005. 

 
Enc.  (e) Petition Requesting Improvement of the Safety of the Crossing at the 

Intersection of The Ridgeway/Imperial Drive.:    (Pages 55 - 62)   
   Reference from the Council Meeting held on 21 April 2005. 

 
 12. Reports of the Director of Area Services, Urban Living:   

 
Enc.  (a) Uxbridge Road, Hatch End - Road Safety Scheme:    (Pages 63 - 86)   
   Report of the Director of Area Services (Urban Living). 

 
  (b) Petts Hill Bridge Improvement:       
   Verbal report of the Director of Area Services (Urban Living).  

 
13. Any Other Business:    
 Which the Chair has decided is urgent and cannot otherwise be dealt with. 

 
  AGENDA - PART II - NIL   

 



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6 
Pages 1 to 6 

1



2



3



4



5



6

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
Meeting:   Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel 
Date: 21 June 2005 
Subject: Appointment of Advisors to the Panel 

2005/2006 
Responsible Officer: Director Legal Services 
Contact Officer: Laura Kell 020 8424 1265 
Portfolio Holder:  N/A 
Key Decision: No 
 
Section 1: Summary 
 
This report advises Members on the appointment of non-voting advisers to the 
Panel for the Municipal Year 2005/2006. 
 
Decision Required 
 
Members are requested to consider the information outlined below and to appoint 
advisers to the Panel for the 2005/2006 Municipal Year accordingly. 
 
Reason for report 
 
In accordance with Advisory Panel and Consultative Forum Procedure Rule 3, 
the Panel is required to make appointments of advisers to the Panel for the 
2005/2006 Municipal Year. 
 
Benefits 
 
The Panel will have non-voting advisers for the Municipal Year 2005/2006. 
 
Cost of Proposals  
 
None 
 
Risks 
 
None 
 
Implications if recommendations rejected 
 

Agenda Item 10 
Pages 7 to 10 

7



 

The Panel will not have any non-voting advisers for the Municipal Year 
2005/2006. 
 
Section 2: Report 
 
2.1 Brief History 
 
2.1.1 All advisers to the Panel have been contacted and asked to confirm 

whether they wish to continue as advisers to the Panel for the 
Municipal Year 2005/2006. Where vacancies existed, the organisation 
has been contacted and a nomination requested. 

 
2.1.2 The following have confirmed that they wish to continue as advisers to 

the Panel: 
 

• Mr. A. Wood – Harrow Public Transport Users’ Association 
• Mrs. Rhoda Carratt – Harrow Association of Disabled People 
• Mr. E. Diamond – North West London Chamber of Commerce 

 
2.1.3 In September 2004 the Metropolitan Police advised that, after 

consideration and review of the matters typically under discussion by 
the Panel, they felt that it was difficult to justify a regular police 
presence at Panel meetings and they would therefore not be putting 
forward a nomination for an adviser to represent their organisation on 
the Panel. They added, however, that if a specific issue were raised 
where police views were required, they would be happy for a 
representative to attend. 

 
2.1.4 Contact has been made with the Harrow and District Pedestrians’ 

Association and CTC/Right to Ride, who have not yet made 
nominations but expressed interest in appointing advisors to the Panel. 

 
2.2 Options considered 
 

See paragraph 2.1 above. 
 
2.3 Consultation 

 
N/A 

 
2.4 Financial Implications/Legal Implications 
 

N/A 
 
2.5 Equalities Impact 
 

To promote and enhance local democracy and public service values by 
increasing opportunities for participation, through effective communication 
and by developing the capacity to empower Harrow’s communities.  
 
 

8



 

Section 3: Supporting Information/ Background Documents 
 
Correspondence with advisers. 
 
 

9



10

This page is intentionally left blank



 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW      
 
TRAFFIC AND ROAD SAFETY ADVISORY PANEL 
 
TUESDAY 21 JUNE 2005 

 
 

Petition Requesting Road Safety Measures in Kenton Park Parade 
 

Reference from Council – 24 February 2005 
 

1(i)   At the meeting of Council held on 24 February 2005, the following petition requesting  
         road safety measures in Kenton Park Parade was presented:  

 
Submitted By Number of Signatures 
Councillor Vina Mithani 137 
 

1(ii) The petition stood referred to the Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel for  
         consideration as follows:- 
                 
                (Minute Number 286 (ii)): 
 
                ‘Submitted by Councillor Vina Mithani, containing 137 signatures of residents, 
                requesting on behalf of the local traders a prohibition on vehicles driving onto 
                the pavement at Kenton Park Parade, Kenton Road, on general safety grounds 
                and for the prevention of obstruction of access to shops, and seeking that a survey 
                be undertaken for the implementation of appropriate safety and traffic measures.’ 

 
 

1(iii)  The petition is in the following terms:- 
 
        ‘This petition is to disqualify vehicles driving on to the pavement on Kenton Park  
         Parade /Kenton Road.” 
 
  [Note: A copy of the first page of the petition is attached as an appendix to this report.] 
         

2. The Director of Area Services, Urban Living advises as follows: 
 
A multi skilled team has been set up to assess and monitor the severity of the 
problem, identify the potential remedies available to the Council and 
determine a plan of action for implementation to address the problems 
identified.  
  

The Lead Officer responsible for coordinating the activities of the team is Jerry 
Hickman, Group Manager, Public Realm Services. The team consists of 
representatives from Area Services, Transportation, Highways Enforcement, 
Parking Services and Legal Services, to ensure that a joint approach and 
remedies are identified across the directorate.   
 

Agenda Item 11a 
Pages 11 to 16 

11



 

The problem identified is not unique to this parade, where the businesses own 
their forecourt, but not the highway/footpath adjacent to this, but use this to 
access their property in order to park. This case and the solutions identified 
will therefore be treated as a pilot for other areas.  As such investigation of 
this issue justifies that officers invest time to assess the situation and 
appropriate remedies carefully so that we can establish what potential 
remedies and actions are available to us in both the short and long-term and 
to what extent we can find a mutually acceptable solution to the council and 
businesses alike. The solutions identified can then act as the template for 
application across the borough. 
 
In this case there is no access across the footpath, which is deemed highway, 
and no dropped curb to allow access and it is not considered appropriate or in 
the interests of pedestrian safety to provide such access. The Area Services 
Team has monitored the problem and the key problem identified is clearly 
associated with a small minority of the businesses in the parade who insist in 
parking in front of their premises. This then encourages visiting vehicles to 
follow suit exacerbating the problem. 
 
Options Identified 
 
The team has met to discuss the findings and clearly identify the options 
available. At this meeting the following potential area of control were identified 
for further investigation and agreement: 
 
1. To gain control of the forecourts (dedication as highway) by negotiation with 

the businesses in the parade to enable the Council to lay out, manage and 
maintained the forecourt, integrating this with the footway to provide a long 
term controllable solution to council standards. The financial burden of this 
commitment to maintain the private forecourts will need to be carefully 
considered before this avenue is formally pursued.  

 
2. The potential to introduce a Licensing Regime for the display of goods by 

the businesses.  This would need to be considered on a borough wide 
basis to ensure that all traders were treated equally and to enable a 
borough wide policy on retail displays on the highway to be developed and 
is not likely to be capable of being implemented within an acceptable 
timescale.  

 
3. To investigate the rear service road facilities and measures required to 

achieve greater utilisation of the service road including how the council can 
assist in bringing this into full use for both service and loading to and from 
the businesses.  

 
4. Whilst rear servicing is preferable, service/loading bays will be considered 

at the kerbside in front as part of the development of the control on the 
forecourt as detailed in 1 above. This will also require the need to carefully 
consider the impact on shopper parking.  

 

12



 

5. To clearly identify if there are any potential linkages with other initiatives to 
tidy up/improve this parade under the Area Services Rollout or 
Transportation plans. 

 
The outcome of these considerations and the agreed action plan for 
investigation will be reported to the next Road Safety and Traffic Advisory 
Panel for agreement prior to implementation.  
 
Current Position 
 
The Area Services Team have approached the businesses in the parade to 
negotiate an informal solution by persuading the businesses to stop parking 
on their forecourts and to discuss and agree the preferred options for the 
provision of a long term solution.  
 
If this fails to result in a short term improvement in the situation we will 
implement an enforcement regime as it is an offence to cross the pavement to 
access the forecourt area owned by the businesses. It is not considered 
appropriate for this to be our initial action but for use as a last resort as we are 
seeking to form a working relationship with the businesses and work in 
partnership with them to achieve a mutually beneficial solution.  
 
It should be noted that the council does not have the power to disqualify 
vehicles as requested in the petition but can only prosecute for each individual 
contravention under Highways Legislation as a separate event. 
 
Recommendations 
 
The following recommendations are made: 
 

1. The Panel consider the options identified and inform officers of any 
option identified which is not considered appropriate by the panel. 

 
2. The Panel identify a preferred course of action for officers to pursue in 

considering the most appropriate long term solution. 
 

3. That the panel agree that officer’s report back to a future meeting on 
the preferred option identified and presents an action plan for 
implementation for agreement by the panel. 

 
 
Background Documents:  Petition presented to Council on 24 February 2005. 
                                         Minutes of the Council meeting held on 24 February 
                                         2005. 
 
Contact:  Laura Kell, Room 143, Democratic Services 
                Direct Dial: 020 8424 1265 
                E-mail: laura.kell@harrow.gov.uk 
                       
 

13



14

This page is intentionally left blank



15



16



 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW      
 
TRAFFIC AND ROAD SAFETY ADVISORY PANEL 
 
TUESDAY 21 JUNE 2005 

 
 
Petition Requesting Traffic Calming Measures in Albury Drive and Evelyn Drive 

 
Reference from Council – 24 February 2005 

 
1(i)   At the meeting of Council held on 24 February 2005, the following petition requesting  
        traffic calming measures in Albury Drive and Evelyn Drive was presented:  

 
Submitted By Number of Signatures 
Councillor Knowles 55 
 
Subsequently, an enlarged petition with supporting letters was submitted to officers for 
their consideration, containing 72 additional signatures. 
 

1(ii) The petition stood referred to the Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel for  
         consideration as follows:- 
                 
                (Minute Number 286 (iii)): 
 
                ‘Submitted by Councillor Knowles, containing 55 signatures of residents of Albury 
                Drive and Evelyn Drive, Pinnerwood Park Conservation area, expressing concern 
                At the increasing volume, speed and size of vehicles using their roads, giving rise 
                to danger for residents and noise pollution in a Conservation area, and requesting  
                measures to address the problem. 

 
1(iii)  The petition is in the following terms:- 

 
        ‘We, as residents of the Pinnerwood Park Conservation area, are concerned by the   
        increasing volume, speed and size of vehicles using Albury Drive and Evelyn 
        Drive. 
        We feel that the traffic is a danger to both the residents and the local school 
        children. 
        We also feel that the noise pollution is detracting from the nature of the 
        Conservation area. 
        The current “speed cushions” appear to have little or no impact on the traffic. 
        We respectfully ask the Council to take measures to address the problem.” 
 
  [Note: A copy of the first page of the petition is attached as an appendix to this report.] 
         

2. The Director of Area Services, Urban Living advised as follows: 
 

2.1 The existing traffic calming scheme in the Evelyn Drive/Albury Drive area was 
completed in June 1997.  ‘Before and After’ monitoring of traffic speed and 
volume was carried out in Albury Drive to assess the effectiveness of the 

Agenda Item 11b 
Pages 17 to 28 

17



 

measures that were introduced.  The ‘before’ surveys were done in October 
1994 and the ‘After’ surveys in November 2002.  The results show that prior 
to installation of the scheme the 85-percentile speed of traffic was 48mph and 
afterwards reduced to 36mph, a 25% reduction.  These figures were for small 
samples of vehicles travelling during the late evening and very early morning.  
More statistically representative figures for normal daytime behaviour are 
44mph before and 31mph after, an almost 30% reduction in traffic speed. 

 
2.2 The average weekday traffic flow before traffic calming was 6240 vehicles 

per day (vpd)(24 hour, two-way total) and 4840vpd after, a 22% reduction.  
Average weekend before and after flows were 4620 and 3200vpd 
respectively, a reduction of over 30%. 

 
2.3 In the three-year period before the scheme was introduced there were 8 

personal injury accidents.  In the three-year period immediately afterwards 
the number of accidents had reduced to 3. 

 
2.4 It is clear from the above figures that the introduction of the traffic calming 

measures brought about a significant improvement.  However, it is possible 
that the position might have changed since the last surveys were carried out 
in 2002. 

 
2.5 Following submission of the petition to Council on 24 February 2005 further 

surveys were commissioned to determine whether traffic speed and volume 
has increased as claimed.  Traffic data was collected between 5 and 11 May 
2005 at two sites.  One on Albury Drive to provide a direct comparison with 
the original ‘before and after’ data but with the location specifically chosen to 
ensure that the results would be unaffected by known parking congestion 
towards the Pinner Hill Road junction.  The second site was on Evelyn Drive 
to determine if there were notable variations in traffic speed along the route.  
A location mid-way between junctions was chosen to ensure that the speed 
results would be unaffected by slower moving, turning traffic and to provide a 
typical figure for through traffic.  During the week that the survey equipment 
was in place minor surface patching works were being carried out on Albury 
Drive and Evelyn Drive.  The traffic management for the works will have 
affected the speed measurements on the particular day, or part of the day, 
that work was taking place near the equipment.  However, as data has been 
collected for a complete week, the effect of this can be eliminated by 
considering only the data for the periods when the highest speeds were 
recorded.  These are the figures quoted below. 

 
2.5 The latest figures show that on Albury Drive the 85-percentile speed of traffic, 

during periods of very light flow in the late evening/early morning, has 
remained unchanged at 36 mph.  The speed representing normal daytime 
behaviour has increased very slightly from 31 to 32mph but such a small 
change may simply reflect typical sampling variation rather than show any 
real trend. 

 
2.6 Between 2002 and 2005 the average weekday traffic flow has increased by 

5.7% (to 5116 vpd) closely matching the national traffic growth trend of 5% 

18



 

for the most recent three-year period of available data (2000 to 2003).  This 
suggests that there has been little, if any, shift in traffic to this route from 
parallel routes since the last surveys were carried out.  What increase there 
has been will, in the main, reflect increased car ownership and increased car 
use by local people.  Growth in the average weekend flow is slightly higher at 
8.6% giving a current flow of 3477vpd. 

 
2.7 Inspection of the most recent three-year period of available accident data 

shows only two accidents in the Albury Drive and Evelyn Drive area, one less 
than recorded in the period immediately after the existing traffic calming 
measures were introduced. 

 
2.8 Traffic speed measurements carried out on Evelyn Drive exactly matched 

those for Albury Drive (both the higher evening/early morning figure and the 
daytime figure) suggesting that there is little significant variation in speed 
along the route. 

 
2.9 The recent surveys and accident statistics show that the traffic calming 

measures on Albury Drive and Evelyn Drive are continuing to provide the 
benefits that arose when they were first introduced.  Traffic for the most part 
travels below or only very marginally above the speed limit, there has been 
no noticeable transfer in traffic to this route from parallel routes and accident 
rates remain very low.  Using the latest data to re-assess the area under the 
Council’s traffic calming assessment method places it outside of the twenty 
highest ranked sites in the borough demonstrating much higher need for 
priority action elsewhere and, as current levels of funding available allow the 
Council to install only one or two traffic calming schemes a year, it will take 
several years before this area approaches the top of the list. 

 
2.10 From this updated information and assessment work it is evident that there 

are more clearly demonstrable traffic and accident problems in other parts of 
the borough and further work here cannot be justified in the short to medium 
term.  However, it is recognised that there are local concerns, and that 
accident and traffic flow trends may change.  To ensure that any significant 
deterioration in the position is noted as soon as possible The Albury 
Drive/Evelyn Drive area should be listed in the traffic-calming programme as 
this will provide the periodic monitoring that may highlight a need for earlier 
action. 

 
2.11 It is recommended that the Panel note that the Albury Drive/Evelyn 

Drive area is listed in the traffic-calming programme so that periodic 
monitoring, that may highlight a need for early action, takes place. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

19



 

FOR INFORMATION 
 
Background Documents:  Petition presented to Council on 24 February 2005. 
                                         Minutes of the Council meeting held on 24 February 
                                         2005. 
 
Contact:  Laura Kell, Room 143, Democratic Services. 
                Direct Dial: 020 8424 1265. 
                E-mail: laura.kell@harrow.gov.uk 

20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW      
 
TRAFFIC AND ROAD SAFETY ADVISORY PANEL 
 
TUESDAY 21 JUNE 2005 

 
 
Petition Relating to Issues of Damage and Road Safety on Rayners Lane and 

Neighbouring Streets 
 

Reference from Council – 21 April 2005 
 
1(i)   At the meeting of Council held on 21 April 2005, the following petition relating to issues 

of damage and road safety on Rayners Lane and neighbouring streets was presented: 
 

Submitted By Number of Signatures 
Councillor Harriss 54 
 

1(ii) The petition stood referred to the Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel for 
consideration as follows:- 

 
           (Minute Number 304 (1)): 
 

‘Submitted by Councillor Harriss, containing some 54 signatures of residents of 
Rayners Lane and neighbouring streets situated close to the Rayners Lane 
Estate Development, seeking answers from the Council to a variety of questions 
relating to (i) the lack of notification and consultation after planning applications 
were submitted to alter the originally approved scheme, (ii) the damage to 
property and the roads caused by the size and frequency of London Buses along 
Rayners Lane and (iii) drawing attention to road safety issues as Rayners Lane is 
the subject of weight restriction for heavy vehicles. 

  
[Part (i) of the petition stood referred to the Development Control 
Committee and parts (ii) and (iii) to the Traffic Advisory Panel].’ 

 
1(iii)  The petition is in the following terms:- 

                     
‘The residents would like answers from the Council of the London 
Borough of Harrow to a variety of questions relating to the lack of 
notification and consultation after planning applications were submitted 
to alter the originally approved scheme. 

 
‘Secondly, they would like to notify the Council of their concerns 
relating to damage to property and the roads caused by the size and 
frequency of London Buses along Rayners Lane. 

 
‘Finally they wish to draw attention to road safety issues, as this road is 
the subject of weight restrictions for heavy vehicles.’ 
 

Agenda Item 11c 
Pages 29 to 38 

29



 
 

[Note: Copies of the first page of the petition are attached as an appendix            
to this report. Immediately prior to printing, a further letter was received, 
attached as Appendix B, which the officers will address at the meeting]. 
 

2. The Director of Area Services, Urban Living advises as follows:   
 

2.1 The H12 bus route runs between South Harrow and Stanmore Station, via 
Rayners Lane.  Double deck buses used this route until 1987 (route 209).  
The decision to change to smaller vehicles was a commercial decision related 
to the introduction of ‘Hoppa’ buses.  However, this lead to complaints about 
overcrowding.  Despite a change to longer single deck buses, overcrowding 
on the route remained an issue. 

 
2.2 Following continued concern that some parts of the H12 bus route were 

overcrowded, particularly at school times, Transport for London took the 
recent opportunity of retendering this route to introduce a number of changes 
to the service.  Earlier and later buses were introduced to serve earlier and 
later train times and single deck buses were replaced with fully accessible low 
floor double deck buses.  The proposals were the subject of consultation 
during 2004 and detailed consideration at the council’s Bus and Highway 
Liaison meetings.  The suitability of the route for larger buses was examined 
at a route test involving the council, TfL, the police and the bus operator, 
Metroline.  The changes were implemented in September 2004. 
 

2.2 Following complaints from local residents in March 2005, TfL explained the 
reasoning behind the change to double deck buses: 
 

o The size and frequency of buses specified by London Buses is 
based on the number of passengers using the service at the 
busiest point; 

o Route H12 serves a number of schools and colleges and the 
highest demand is when students are travelling; 

o Up to 2004, single decks were used with few supplementary 
double decks at the busiest time. This was still not sufficient and 
therefore the proposal to convert to all double decks; 

o Bids were invited from operators for single and double decks. 
The costs showed that continuing to provide a mixed bus 
service would cost approximately the same as all double decks 
without the ability to avoid overcrowding; 

o Passenger usage and service levels are continuously reviewed 
and mid life changes to contracts are negotiated with operators 
where appropriate. 

 
2.3 With regard to the weight restriction in the area, this applies to goods vehicles 

exceeding 7.5 tonnes gross weight, unless they require access to land or 
premises within the zone.  In summary the restriction does not apply to buses 
or any vehicle, regardless of size or weight, that requires access to the area.   
 

30



 
 

2.4 Rayners Lane is a local access road and whilst any weight of vehicle is 
permitted to use it for access, it’s construction is not as strong as strategic or 
main distributor roads.  Following the introduction of larger buses in 
September 2004 the road condition was inspected in January and again in 
February 2005 when no structural defects requiring maintenance were found.  
A further inspection since receipt of the petition has identified deterioration of 
the carriageway.  Further investigation into the extent and programming of  
remedial maintenance is underway.  Budgetary provision exists for local road 
maintenance.  However, officers will investigate the possibility of a funding 
contribution from TfL towards the maintenance costs. 
 

2.5 Councillor Harriss, who presented the petition, has advised of the road safety 
concern of buses trying to pass each other on the sharp bend at Rayners 
Lane/Thackeray Close, where there is evidence of vehicles mounting the 
pavement.  The erection of bollards to prevent this seems appropriate and 
cost effective and Cllr Harriss has been consulted on this recommended 
action.   An alternative course of action would be to introduce temporary 
waiting restrictions in the vicinity of the bend to allow use of the full 
carriageway width.  Parking associated with the adjacent construction work on 
the Rayners Lane Estate currently interferes with flow around this bend.   

 
2.6 In addition, officers in liaison with the operator, will investigate whether any 

further traffic management measures are appropriate in the interest of 
reducing the impact of buses.  Following initial liaison, Metroline have 
instructed drivers to drive with particular care on this part of the route. 

 
2.7 With regard to the concern about damage to properties, it is normal practice to 

carry out a preliminary investigation into any specific claims.  Most commonly 
vibration caused by traffic is transmitted via airborne vibration and is rarely of 
a magnitude to cause significant damage.  However, any specific claim can 
be looked into. 
 

2.8 The section of Rayners Lane between Alexandra Avenue and Eastcote Lane 
was the subject of a recent local safety scheme.  In the 3 years before the 
scheme there were 11 personal injury accidents.  Since implementation in mid 
2003, up to December 2004 (the latest month for accident statistics) there 
was 1 personal injury accident.  Whilst it is too early to draw conclusions (3 
years is the recommended study period) the early indication is that the 
scheme has been very successful in reducing accidents.  None of the 
personal injury accidents, before or after the safety scheme, involved buses.  
As the council’s accident records include only accidents involving personal 
injury, accident reports have been requested from the bus operator to 
ascertain whether there have been any damage-only accidents involving 
buses and if so whether there have been more since double deck buses were 
introduced. 
 

2.9 In conclusion, the increase in the size and number of buses along Rayners 
Lane represents a welcome improvement in service level for bus passengers 
and is consistent with the council’s policy to improve bus services and 
encourage greater use of public transport.  This advantage has to be weighed 
against the adverse implications of larger buses using local roads.  It is 

31



 
 

accepted that buses can appear out of scale with the streetscene in smaller 
local roads and measures to reduce the impact and/or improve safety will be 
investigated.  
 

2.10 It is recommended that the Panel note the on-going investigations with 
respect to safety and road condition and recommend the Portfolio 
Holder for Environment and Transport to authorise officers to implement 
remedial measures as part of the traffic management and road 
maintenance programmes as appropriate. 
 
FOR CONSIDERATION 
 
Background Documents:  Petitions presented to Council on 21 April 2005. 
                                         Minutes of the Council meeting on 21 April 2005. 
                                     
Contact:  Laura Kell, Room 143, Committee Section. 
                Direct Dial: 020 8424 1265. 
                E-mail: laura.kell@harrow.gov.uk 
 

32



33



34



35



36



37



38



 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW      
 
TRAFFIC AND ROAD SAFETY ADVISORY PANEL 
 
TUESDAY 21 JUNE 2005 

 
 

Petition Suggesting Traffic Options to Improve Parking on Georgian Way, Harrow Hill 
 

Reference from Council – 21 April 2005 
 
1(i)   At the meeting of Council held on 21 April 2005, the following petition recommending a 

number of traffic options for Georgian Way, Harrow Hill was presented: 
 

Submitted By Number of Signatures 
Councillor Mrs Kinnear 26 
 

1(ii) The petition stood referred to the Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel for 
consideration as follows:- 

 
           (Minute Number 304 (2)): 
 

‘Submitted by Councillor Mrs Kinnear, containing some 26 signatures 
of residents of “Georgian Way, Harrow Hill” referring to the ongoing 
problems of St. Dominic’s School students parking in their road and 
recommending a number of traffic options to be considered by the 
Council at the earliest opportunity.’ 

 
1(iii)  The petition is in the following terms:- 

                     
‘We, the undersigned, hereby request, in view of the ongoing problems 
of St. Dominic School students parking in our road that the following 
options for new regulations be considered at the earliest opportunity’ 

 
[Note: The petition comprised a series of identical letters one signed by each 
petitioner a single copy is attached as APPENDIX A of this report, together 
with additional comments made by petitioners during further investigations 
by officers at APPENDIX B]. 

 
2. The Director of Area Services, Urban Living advised as follows: 
 
2.1 Investigations by officers has confirmed that the configuration of the junction of 

Georgian Way and Mount Park Avenue is such that parking within 10 metres in 
any direction would be likely to cause access problems.  After due 
consideration it is concluded that the highway would benefit from an “At any 
time” (double yellow line) waiting restriction at the junction as shown at 
APPENDIX C. 

 
2.2 It will be seen from the plan at APPENDIX C that Georgian Way is a cul-de-sac 

with a turning head at its end.  It is important that this turning facility be kept 

Agenda Item 11d 
Pages 39 to 54 

39



 

clear of parked vehicles to enable large vehicles to turn and travel back to 
Mount Park Avenue in forward gear.  It is therefore concluded that an “At any 
time” waiting restriction be provided as shown on the plan at APPENDIX C. 
 

2.3 The carriageway width is 5.5 metres.  This width is insufficient to accommodate 
parking on both sides of the carriageway.  However the width is sufficient to 
accommodate parking on one side.  If parking were restricted to one side then 
the parking capacity of the road would be optimised and it would be less likely 
that the road would be obstructed.  If a single line waiting restriction were 
introduced on one side of the road, in operation for one hour in the morning 
and one hour in the afternoon, then it would be likely that all parking would take 
place on the other side of the road and that nuisance and inconvenience to 
both residents and other users would be much reduced. 
 

2.4 The options considered at paragraphs 2.1, 2.2 and 2.3 are considered 
preferable to the implementation of a controlled parking zone (CPZ) because of 
the concern that displaced parking would be problematic.  In the wider context, 
the principle a CPZ on “The Hill” has not been supported previously and is not 
recommended. 
 

2.5 It would be necessary to consult the residents, before drafting the required 
traffic regulation orders, to discover the residents’ preferences in respect of the 
operation times of the controls and which side of the road the single line should 
be. 
 

2.6 The estimated cost of proposals is £5,000, which can be funded from the 
Traffic Management Budget.   
 

2.7 It is recommended that the Panel recommend to the Portfolio Holder for 
Environment and Transport that officers be instructed to consult the 
residents and, subject to the results of the consultation, advertise all 
necessary traffic orders and, subject to the consideration of any 
objections to the making of the orders, implement the waiting restrictions 
as shown on the plan at APPENDIX C. 
 

 
FOR CONSIDERATION 
 
Background Documents:  Petition presented to Council on 21 April 2005. 

Minutes of the Council meeting on 21 April 2005.                        
 
Contact:  Laura Kell, Room 143, Committee Section. 
                Direct Dial: 020 8424 1265. 
                E-mail: laura.kell@harrow.gov.uk 
 
 

40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B 
 

 
A ward Councillor and officers have attended a meeting of the newly formed Georgian Way 
Residents’ Association and have had several telephone discussions with residents.  Residents’ 
concerns are summarised as follows: 
 

a) Parking at the junction of the Georgian Way and Mount Park Avenue prevents larger 
vehicles from accessing Georgian Way.  Residents are concerned that the emergency 
vehicles might not be able to gain access to the street, if required.  This is perceived as 
the highest priority. 

 
b) Student parking in Georgian Way has led to confrontation between residents and 

students and the petition mentions anger and frustration.  Residents report that some 
vehicles are forced to drive over soft verges causing damage. 

 
c) Residents have reported that some students have parked across driveways making it 

difficult and sometimes impossible for them to gain access to the road. 
 

d) The petition requests that yellow lines be provided at the junction of Georgian Way and 
Mount Pak Avenue/Road and that Georgian Way be made a controlled parking zone 
(CPZ). 

 
e) Many residents have reported unpleasant and rude behaviour by students including 

trespass, damage of property, loud music from cars and litter. 
 

f) The residents hold the view that the college should take more responsibility for the 
problem and provide sufficient parking facilities on their site.      

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

53



 
APPENDIX C 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This appendix consists of an ordnance survey map which is not available 
electronically. 

 

54



 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW      
 
TRAFFIC AND ROAD SAFETY ADVISORY PANEL 
 
TUESDAY 21 JUNE 2005 

 
 

Petition Requesting the Improvement of the Safety of the Crossing at the Intersection 
of The Ridgeway / Imperial Drive 

 
Reference from Council – 21 April 2005 

 
1(i)   At the meeting of Council held on 21 April 2005, the following petition requesting the 

improvement of the safety of the crossing at the intersection of The Ridgeway and 
Imperial Drive was presented: 

 
Submitted By Number of Signatures 
Councillor Anjana Patel 1000 
 

1(ii) The petition stood referred to the Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel for 
consideration as follows:- 

 
           (Minute Number 304 (3)): 
 

‘Submitted by Councillor Anjana Patel, containing some 
1,000 signatures of local residents urging the Council to improve the 
safety of the crossing at the intersection of The Ridgeway and Imperial 
Drive between North Harrow and Rayners Lane and proposing various 
initiatives to address the perceived problems for the consideration of 
the Council.’ 

 
1(iii)  The petition is in the following terms:- 

                     
‘We, the undersigned petition the Council to improve the safety of the 
crossing at the intersection of The Ridgeway and Imperial Drive 
between North Harrow and Rayners Lane.’  

 
[Note: A copy of the first page of the petition is attached as an appendix to 
this report, together with letters supporting the petition]. 

 
2. The Director of Area Services, Urban Living advised as follows:   
 
2.1 As a result of the many requests received for pedestrian crossing facilities at 

this junction and for measures to make the northbound and southbound right 
turns from Imperial Drive safer the Traffic Signals Unit at Transport for London 
has recently conducted a study into what improvements could be made.  This 
concluded that the best option for dealing with the right turn problem was to 
provide a separate phase within the signal sequence for each approach.  Right 
turners would then be able to turn freely, unopposed by other traffic flows.  This 
phasing would also allow pedestrians to safely cross each arm of the junction in 

Agenda Item 11e 
Pages 55 to 62 

55



 

two stages, crossing the junction entry when traffic is held by a red light and 
crossing the exit when the corresponding entry traffic gets a green signal and 
traffic on all other approaches is stopped.  However, the changes in signal 
timing needed to bring this about would lead to increased queuing and delay on 
some approaches, in particular on The Ridgeway approaches.  Given the level 
of congestion already being experienced at the junction this will in turn lead to 
more traffic diverting into side roads such as Alfriston Avenue, Church Drive, 
Lancaster Road and Elm Drive and would have safety and environmental 
implications for residents and pedestrians within these roads. It is clear from the 
work done that, to deal with the difficulties faced by pedestrians in this area, a 
much more comprehensive study is needed than one that focuses solely on the 
Imperial Drive/The Ridgeway junction. 
 

2.2 Consultants have recently been appointed to prepare a Safer Routes to School 
scheme for Longfield First and Middle Schools which will investigate the needs 
of pedestrians and in particular school children, throughout this area.  They are 
currently working with the school to develop a school travel plan that will include 
a detailed look at the way children and staff travel to and from school and look 
at ways in which walking/cycling routes to the school can be improved.  As part 
of this process staff and parents are being asked to identify problem areas that 
are a deterrent to walking and cycling to school.  This will allow a detailed 
picture to be built up of the needs in the area and allow a comprehensive set of 
proposals to be identified to deal with those problems.  The petition submitted to 
Council and the supporting suggestions will be made available to the consultant 
to help inform those proposals. 

 
2.3 The initial phase of the work gathering information from staff, parents and 

children on current travel methods and on problem areas that are a deterrent to 
walking will be completed by mid-June.  Proposals based on this information 
will be investigated in more detail and drawn up over the summer ready for 
public consultation in the autumn.  From late autumn through winter the public 
consultation responses will be analysed, suggested modifications incorporated 
where appropriate and final proposals drawn up in detail for approval.  Any 
statutory processes necessary such as publication of traffic orders will also be 
completed in this period.  A bid has been made to Transport for London for 
funding to construct the scheme in 2006/07.  The most appropriate time for 
construction is likely to be during the school summer holidays in 2006, 
particularly for any works in close proximity to the school. 
 

2.4 It is recommended that the Panel note the report and the on-going study 
to improve pedestrian facilities in this area. 

 
FOR INFORMATION 
 
Background Documents:  Petition presented to Council on 21 April 2005. 

Minutes of the Council meeting on 21 April 2005.                        
 
Contact:  Laura Kell, Room 143, Committee Section. 
                Direct Dial: 020 8424 1265. 
                E-mail: laura.kell@harrow.gov.uk 

56



57



58



59



60



61



62



 

 

Meeting: Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel  
Date: 21 June 2005 
Subject: Uxbridge Road, Hatch End – Road Safety 

Scheme 
Responsible Officer: Andrew Trehern, Director of Area Services, 

Urban Living 
Contact Officer: Steve Swain, Transportation Manager 
Portfolio Holder:  Environment and Transport  
Key Decision: No 
Status: Part 1 

 
Section 1: Summary 
 
Decision Required 
 
That officers be authorised to take all necessary steps to implement the 
proposed Local Safety Scheme shown at Appendix A including advertising 
the traffic orders detailed at Appendix E and consult the frontages where 
yellow line waiting restrictions are proposed between Milne Feild and 
Rowlands Avenue and at Grimsdyke Road, Cornwall Road, Woodriding 
Close, Westfield Park and Dove Park in parallel with advertising the traffic 
orders and  to implement the scheme subject to consideration of 
objections (if any). 
 
Reason for report 
 
To gain approval to implement the proposed scheme.  The road safety benefits 
of the scheme, particularly the expected reduction in accidents and severity, 
would help towards the achievement of the Council’s accident reduction target for 
killed and serious injury casualties as required by the Local Public Service 
Agreement (LPSA). 
 
Benefits 
 

• Road safety improvements 
• Pedestrian facilities 
• Speed reduction 
• Fewer injury collisions (a Best Value Performance Indicator [BV99]) 
• Traffic flow improvement 
• Cycle facilities 

Agenda Item 12a 
Pages 63 to 86 

63



 

• Statutory duty 
 
 
Cost of Proposals  
 
The estimated cost of the scheme is £50,000.  This will be funded from the 
agreed LPSA Road Safety Capital Budget under a Local Public Service 
Agreement between Harrow Council and the Government.  The total funding 
agreed for the road safety schemes is £380,000 which will be used to implement 
three further road safety schemes. 
 
Risks 
 

• Objections may be made to the proposed traffic orders. 
• Insufficient staff time has resulted in slippage.  Further slippage could 

prejudice implementing scheme this financial year when the LPSA funding 
arrangement is available. 

 
 
Implications if recommendations rejected 
 
• LPSA accident reduction target may be affected 
• Possible loss of LPSA funding facility 
• Possible loss of additional LPSA funding 
 
Section 2: Report 
 
2.1 Brief History 
 
2.1.1 Uxbridge Road (A410), Hatch End is on the Local Safety Schemes 

programme for implementation in this financial year.  It is one of four schemes 
included in the Local Public Service Agreement in which the Council has 
agreed to stretch its road traffic Killed and Seriously Injured (KSI) casualty 
target to below the national target of 93 by 2005. The agreed target is 90 KSI. 

 
2.1.2 There have been 36 recorded injury accidents on this section of the A410 in 

the three year period (to 31st October 2002). The percentage of killed and 
serious injury accidents for the route is almost double that for similar roads in 
Borough. 

 
2.1.3 The percentages of pedestrian, pedal cyclist and powered 2-wheeler 

casualties are similar to those recorded in the Borough as a whole. The 
number of accidents occurring in darkness or wet road conditions are 
significantly higher than in Harrow overall.  The lighting has been upgraded 
recently and the section of road prone to wet road accidents was re-surfaced 
last year.  These measures should reduce these types of accidents.   

 
2.1.4 This length of the A410 is approximately 1.4 kilometres. The section east of 

Grimsdyke Road forms part of the London Cycle Network (LCN), and is a well 
used bus route. Hatch End underground station and Hatch End Shopping 

64



 

Centre are the main generators of pedestrian traffic, particularly with the large 
number of restaurants in the area. 

 
2.2 Options considered 
 
2.2.1 The principle objective of the scheme is to reduce accidents. It is proposed to 

install measures to reduce speeds, minimise conflicts, improve surface 
skidding resistance, and improve facilities for pedestrians and cyclists. In 
addition, it is proposed to introduce gateways at both approaches to the 
Hatch End shopping area.  

 
2.2.1 In the shopping area, the scheme would change the character of the road by  

gateway treatments, cycle lanes, buff anti-skid surfacing, and double yellow 
line waiting and loading restrictions at Grimsdyke Road and Cornwall Road 
junctions (see Appendix A).  The proposed gateway treatments (at entry 
points to the shopping area) consist of red road surfacing with imprinted 
SLOW road markings and gateway signs on both sides of the entry lanes.  
The proposed sign is shown at Appendix B.  The consultation leaflet for the 
shopping area (see Appendix C) also included parking controls in the service 
roads.  Further yellow line waiting restrictions are proposed at Woodriding 
Close, Westfield Park and Dove Park to deter obstructive parking and to 
improve visibility.  These were not included in the consultation leaflet and it is 
proposed to consult the frontages in parallel with the statutory consultation.  

 
2.2.2 Outside of the shopping area the scheme would include the provision of 

central hatching and cycle lanes to create narrower carriageway lanes. A 
build-out at the existing pelican crossing outside the station is also proposed.  

 
2.2.3 There have been a number of “damage only” collisions at the Milne 

Feild/Safeway roundabout recently which has caused concern amongst the 
local community.  A number of measures are proposed to improve the safety 
of the roundabout.  These include a vehicle activated roundabout sign with a 
‘SLOW DOWN’ message on the westbound approach (see 2.2.5), an 
illuminated roundabout ahead warning sign on yellow backing board on the 
eastbound approach and larger chevron boards on the roundabout.   Recent 
resurfacing at the roundabout has improved skid resistance as well. 

 
2.2.4 The scheme also includes a further electronic vehicle speed-activated 

message sign. This would be on the two lane westbound approach to the 
shopping area (see appendix A).  These signs display a ‘SLOW DOWN’ 
message, and include an electronic display of the speed limit roundel, which 
are triggered when drivers exceed a set threshold speed. The sign face would 
remain blank when not activated.  The vehicle speed activated roundabout 
sign would operate similarly.  Appendix D shows an example of a vehicle 
speed activated sign.  

 
2.2.5 Parking on both sides of Uxbridge Road between Milne Feild and Rowlands 

Avenue creates obstruction and delays affecting buses and general traffic.  
Complaints have been received in this respect and in response to the 
consultation.  Yellow line waiting and loading restrictions are proposed on the 
north side to deal with the problem as shown at Appendix A (see 2.3.6) 

65



 

 
2.3 Consultation 

 
2.3.1 Three stages of consultation have been carried out. The first stage of the 

consultation, on the complete package of proposed measures, was with key 
stakeholders, which included ward councillors, residents’ associations, road 
user groups, disabled users and pedestrian representatives, the emergency 
services and London Bus Services. 

 
2.3.2 The second stage of consultation was with each property (residential or 

business) adjacent to any proposals that directly affect residents or 
businesses. Two separate consultations were carried out, one throughout the 
Hatch End shopping area, and one between Milne Feild and Rowlands 
Avenue. These were carried out by leaflet delivery, detailing the proposals, 
and included a prepaid reply envelope (see Appendix C). A total of 
approximately 300 leaflets were distributed in the Hatch End shopping area 
and 33 (11%) written responses have been received. 

 
2.3.3 Consultation documents were sent to the Hatch End ward councillors for 

comment. Responses received included a comment on the lack of parking 
enforcement causing problems near Grimsdyke Road, and a suggestion that, 
rather than provide an additional pelican crossing, the existing crossing 
should be replaced with signal-control at the Grimsdyke Road junction.    
These comments are addressed at paragraphs 2.3.4, 2.3.5 and 2.3.7. 

 
2.3.4 The results from Hatch End Centre show a mixed response.  The majority of 

the respondents stated that they were in favour of the road safety elements of 
the scheme with one or two exceptions.  The main concern was the notion of 
parking controls in the service roads.  Whilst  it would be desirable to improve 
turnover, parking controls are not critical to the road safety scheme.  As an 
overwhelming number of traders who responded were against, this element of 
the scheme has been dropped from the proposals.  The proposed  pelican 
crossing east of Grimsdyke Road was also opposed by the frontages 
because of problems it may cause with deliveries.  Additionally, concerns 
were expressed about the possible delays it could cause to traffic.  The area 
is already severely congested at peak hours and a further crossing a short 
distance away would compound the problem.  Therefore the proposal has 
been dropped.  There was one comment about the lack of cyclists 
(presumably to justify cycle lanes).   The section east of Grimsdyke Road is 
on the London Cycle Network.  A safe cycle network is necessary to 
encourage cycling and cycle use is expected to increase as more of the 
network is completed.  The proposed cycle lanes visually narrow the traffic 
lanes which achieves lower speeds.  There were no comments on the other 
road safety measures proposed. The responses have been placed in 
Members’ Library. 

 
2.3.5 The respondents support the proposed double yellow line waiting and loading 

restrictions at Grimsdyke Road and Cornwall Road junctions.  However, the 
extent of the restrictions shown in the consultation leaflet for Grimsdyke Road 
is inadequate.  It is therefore proposed to extend the proposed restrictions to 
the entrance to the car park with loading restrictions operating 8 am to 6.30 

66



 

pm, Monday to Saturday as shown at Appendix A.   The existing 8 am to 6.30 
pm, Monday to Saturday waiting restrictions are not effective as loading and 
unloading is permitted.  Parking by orange badge holders in particular has 
been identified as a problem and the proposed loading restrictions coupled 
with enforcement should deter obstructive parking. It is proposed to consult 
the frontages in parallel with statutory consultation. 

 
2.3.6 A separate leaflet (see Appendix C) delivered to residents of Uxbridge Road 

between Milne Feild and Rowlands Avenue included a questionnaire, asking 
if the residents supported the introduction of double yellow line waiting 
restrictions along the north side of the road. A total of 37 questionnaires were 
delivered and 20 (54%) were returned. Of these 11 (55%) were “not in favour” 
and 9 (45%) “in favour”.  As a result it is proposed to downgrade the proposal 
to no waiting from 8 am to 6.30 pm, Monday to Friday with peak hour loading 
restrictions operating from 8 am to 10.00 am and 4pm to 6.30 pm, Monday to 
Friday.  It is proposed to re-consult the frontages on this option (see Appendix 
A) in parallel with the statutory consultation. 

 
2.3.7 During the first two stages of the consultation, there were several requests for 

traffic signals at the junction of Uxbridge Road and Grimsdyke Road.  It was 
suggested that this could replace both the existing pelican crossing and the 
further pelican crossing proposed in the consultation leaflet.  An investigation 
was carried out to assess the feasibility of this suggestion. The traffic 
modelling exercise undertaken showed that a signal controlled junction would 
have a substantially detrimental effect on traffic flows through Hatch End, and 
could not be justified on these grounds.   

 
2.3.8 The third stage of the consultation involved an invitation to ward councillors to 

review the revised scheme which has been modified in light of consultation.  
Two ward members were able to take up the offer and their further 
suggestions have been incorporated in the proposals.  

 
2.3.9 The emergency services support the proposed scheme. 
 
2.3.10 The road safety benefits of the scheme, particularly the expected reductions 

in accidents and severity, would help towards the achievement of the 
Council’s accident reduction target for killed and serious injury casualties as 
required by the LPSA.  It is therefore recommended that the scheme be 
implemented. 

 
2.4 Financial Implications 
 
2.4.1 See cost of proposals. 

 
2.5 Legal Implications 
 
2.5.1 The proposed parking controls can be introduced under the Road Traffic 

Regulation Act 1984. 
 
 
 

67



 

2.6 Equalities Impact 
 
Not applicable. 
 

Section 3: Supporting Information/ Background Documents 
 
Appendices: 
 
Appendix A – Plan of Proposed Local Safety Scheme 
Appendix B -  Gateway sign 
Appendix C – Consultation Leaflets 
Appendix D – Example of Vehicle Speed Activated Sign 
Appendix E -  Schedule for traffic order making purposes 
 
Supporting Information: 
 
Background Documents: Local Safety Schemes Programme, accident records, 
consultation, consultant’s report, LPSA. 
 
 
 
 
 
mn/r- lpsa - hatch end 

68



APPENDIX A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This appendix consists of an ordnance survey map which is not 
available electronically. 

69



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This appendix consists of an ordnance survey map which is not 
available electronically. 

 

70



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This appendix consists of an ordnance survey map which is not 
available electronically. 

71



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This appendix consists of an ordnance survey map which is not 
available electronically. 

 

72



73



74

This page is intentionally left blank



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82

This page is intentionally left blank



83



84

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Appendix E 

 
 
Proposed yellow line waiting restrictions schedule   
  
 
 
 
(a) Westfield Park 
 
The east  side  from  the   northern kerb line of   Uxbridge Road, extending northwards  for a 
distance of 20m. 
 
The west side from the northern kerb line of Uxbridge Road, extending northwards  to the 
southern kerb line of Oakdene Close ( a distance of 35m). 
 
 
   
(b) Woodridings Close  
 
The east side  from  the north western  kerbline of Uxbridge Road, extending northwards  for a  
distance of 32m. 
 
The west side from the north western kerbline of Uxbridge Road, extending northwards for a 
distance of 35m. 
 
 (c)     Uxbridge Road, Hatch End 
 
The north  side , from the eastern kerb line of Woodridings Close extending eastwards for a 
distance of 9m. 
 
The north side,  from the western kerb line of Woodridings Close  extending westwards for a 
distance of 5m. 
 
 
 
 ( d) Dove Park 
 
The west side from the north wall of 14 - 22 Dove Park, to a point 25m southwards along the 
western kerb line. 
 
The east side, from the southern kerb line of Uxbridge Road, extending southwards for a 
distance of 10m. 
 
(e) Uxbridge Road  
 
The south side from the eastern kerb line of Dove Park, extending eastwards for a distance 
10m. 
 
 

85



 
 
 
(f) Uxbridge Road 
 
The north side, 5m from the eastern kerb line of Milne Feild, extending eastwards to the 
common boundary of number 106 and The Hatch End Free Church on Headstone Lane. 
 
 
 
(g) Grimsdyke Road 
 
From the northern kerb line of Uxbridge Road, extending northwards for a distance of 60m. 
 
 
(h) Uxbridge Road  
 
From the common boundary of 278 – 280 and 282 / 284, extending westwards to the east kerb 
line of Grimsdyke Road. 
 
From the west kerb line of Grimsdyke Road, extending westwards for a distance of 15m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

86


	Agenda
	6 Minutes
	10 Appointment of Advisors to the Panel 2005/2006
	11a Petition Requesting Road Saftey Measures in Kenton Park Parade, Kenton Road
	Petition Requesting Road Safety Measures in Kenton Park Parade - Front Page

	11b Petition Requesting Dangerous Traffic Problems to be Addressed in Albury Drive and Evelyn Drive
	Petition Requesting Traffic Calming Measures in Albury Drive and Evelyn Drive redacted

	11c Petition Relating to Issues of Damage and Road Safety on Rayners Lane and Neighbouring Streets
	Front Page of Petition - Rayners Lane Bus Route
	Mrs Wilcher letter - Rayners Lane

	11d Petition Recommending Traffic Options for Georgian Way, Harrow-on-the-Hill
	Front Page of Petition - Georgian Way
	APPENDIX B - Georgian Way

	11e Petition Requesting Improvement of the Safety of the Crossing at the Intersection of The Ridgeway/Imperial Drive
	Front Page of Petition - Ridgeway-Imperial

	12a Uxbridge Road, Hatch End - Road Safety Scheme
	Hatch End - APPENDIX A Publishable
	Hatch End - Appendix B
	Hatch End - Appendix C
	Hatch End - Appendix D
	R- LPSA Hatch End Appendix E - schedule


